
 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2016, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, Thomas F. Hundley, Beth A. 

Taylor 
 
Members absent:  Joseph E. Hand, Jr. 
 
Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager 

Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon G. Corvin, Town Attorney Robert 
P. Kaase, Bill Brogden, Polly Miller, Garnett Miller, Rebecca Beamer, 
Becky Grubb, Rusty Jones, Bobby Love, Danny Gordon with WYVE-
AM/WXBX-FM/WLOY-AM, Police Officer Kelly White 

 
RE:  CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members 
was present. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilwoman Taylor. 
 
RE: REORGANIZATION OF COUNCIL DUE TO SPECIAL ELECTION 
 
Mayor Crewe advised the next agenda item is the Reorganization of Council due to the special 
election where Dr. Beth A. Taylor was elected to the Town Council. He noted this requires the 
Reorganization of Council. Mayor Crewe stated he would certainly recognize the fact that 
Councilwoman Taylor has been properly sworn in and elected. Mayor Crewe noted that the 
Council would like to congratulate her. He expressed that unless there is an objection from the 
Council, he will make the appointment of Councilwoman Beth A. Taylor to the Budget and 
Finance Committee, which is a Mayoral appointment. Mayor Crewe explained that the Public 
Works Committee would continue to be Councilman Hundley and Councilman Hand. He 
remarked that Vice-Mayor King will continue to serve on the Budget and Finance Committee. 
Mayor Crewe advised that if the Council objects to any of these appointments, to please let him 
know. He stated that based on the Council’s prior discussions, the Council member who serves 
on the Planning Commission has to be a certified Planner, and will continue to be Councilman 
Hand. Mayor Crewe noted that Councilman Hand is attending the Planning Commissioner’s 
School this week to become a certified Planner and that is why he is not present for this Council 
meeting. He advised that Vice-Mayor King will continue to serve as the Vice-Mayor, the Council 
representative on the Wall of Honor Committee and the Council representative on the 
Recreation Commission. Mayor Crewe explained that in regard to the Homestead Museum 
Advisory Board, he will be the Council representative serving on behalf of the Council on the 
Homestead Museum Advisory Board. He noted that Councilman Hundley would continue to 
serve on the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority, the New River Regional Water 
Authority and the District III Governmental Cooperative. Mayor Crewe stated that unless 
someone objects, he will appoint Councilwoman Taylor to serve on the District III Governmental 
Cooperative, and Councilman Hundley will continue to serve as the alternate. He explained that 
Councilman Hundley will continue to be the Council representative for the Downtown Wytheville, 
Incorporated Board. Mayor Crewe stated that unless the Council objects, Town Manager C. 
Wayne Sutherland, Jr. will continue to serve as Town Manager, and the Clerk, Treasurer and 
Town Attorney will remain the same unless someone would like to make a change. Mayor 
Crewe inquired of Town Manager Sutherland if at present, Councilman Hand and 
Councilwoman Taylor would be the Council Personnel Committee representatives. Town 
Manager Sutherland stated that is correct. Vice-Mayor King remarked that, at present, the 
Council Personnel Committee representatives include herself and Councilman Hundley. Town 
Manager Sutherland stated that he apologized, and that he misunderstood and thought Mayor 
Crewe was inquiring about the future representatives. Mayor Crewe explained that the way the 
Council representatives rotate would be that Vice-Mayor King and Councilman Hundley will 
serve on the Committee through November, and then following that meeting, Councilman Hand 
and Councilwoman Taylor will be appointed to the Council Personnel Committee for a six month 
term, commencing December 2016. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any objections, 
problems, questions or suggestions in regard to any of those appointments. Councilman 
Hundley inquired of Mayor Crewe if these appointments can be changed at any point in time by 
a vote of Council. Mayor Crewe stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe commented if there are no 
additions, changes or comments, the Reorganization of Council will occur as he listed it. Mayor 
Crewe advised that this completes the Reorganization of Council. 
 
RE: CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
August 22, 2016; the request of Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated to conduct the Annual 



 
 

Christmas Parade on Saturday, December 3, 2016, at 6:00 p.m.; and, the request of the March 
of Dimes to conduct the March for Babies Parade on Saturday, October 8, 2016, at 10:00 a.m. 
He inquired of the Council if there was a motion to approve the consent agenda together or 
separately. A motion was made by Councilman Hundley and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to 
approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of August 22, 
2016; the request of Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated to conduct the Annual Christmas 
Parade on Saturday, December 3, 2016, at 6:00 p.m.; and, the request of the March of Dimes to 
conduct the March for Babies Parade on Saturday, October 8, 2016, at 10:00 a.m., as 
presented. Mayor Crewe inquired if there was any discussion on the motion to approve the 
consent agenda, as presented. There being none, the motion was approved with the following 
voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, 
Thomas F. Hundley, Beth A. Taylor. Against: None.  
 
RE: PUBLIC HEARING – MILLER SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT REQUEST 
 
Mayor Crewe advised the meeting constituted a public hearing (due notice having been given) 
to consider the request of Garnett and Polly Miller for a special exception permit to operate a 
carwash at 425 East Main Street, which is located on the south side of Main Street between 
Fifth and Seventh Streets, in a B-2 DT- General Business District – Downtown Zoning District. 
He noted that no one listed on the sign in sheet that they wished to speak in regard to the public 
hearing, however, if anyone would like to speak in regard to the public hearing, the Council 
would be glad to hear from them at this time. Mayor Crewe commented that he is not 
suggesting the Millers need to speak, but if they would like to address the Council they are 
welcome to do so at this time. There being no one who wished to speak during the public 
hearing, Mayor Crewe declared the public hearing closed, and he proceeded with the agenda.  
 
RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD  
 
Mayor Crewe advised the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He noted that Mr. Rusty Jones 
had indicated on the sign in sheet that he wished to address the Council. Mayor Crewe 
commented that the Council is glad to have Mr. Jones attend the meeting. He asked that Mr. 
Jones please come forward to the podium and speak into the microphone so that the minutes 
can be properly recorded.  
 
Mr. Rusty Jones was recognized and stated that he lives at 1590 Church Street in Wytheville. 
He noted that the Council has an agenda item later in the meeting in regard to the proposal for 
the street name change, therefore, he assumes it is the street located in front of his house. 
Mayor Crewe stated that is correct. Mr. Jones remarked that he is aware of the fact that the 
Council is in consideration of this matter. He noted that he is attending this meeting to share 
with the Council a little bit of history that he has seen, since 2006, when he bought his farm on 
Reed Creek. Mr. Jones commented that he appreciates the fact that the street is going to 
change to one name because that has been needed for a long time. He noted that it is very 
confusing, and no one has been able to find his house for years when he tells them that he lives 
on Church Street. He explained that he feels very strong about naming the road Reed Creek 
Mill Road. Mr. Jones noted that if a person looks at the history of the properties located on the 
creek, it is his understanding that the road can be connected again with Barrett Mill Road, which 
there is some logic to and there is only the one road. He explained that there is going to be a 
park developed in that same area, which he would also suggest being given the name of Reed 
Creek Mill Park. Mr. Jones stated that when anyone tries to locate something in the area where 
he lives, he does not know about everyone else, but he tells people to go to the Reed Creek 
Mill. He noted that it has been the Reed Creek Mill since 1938 when Mr. Pennix took it over. Mr. 
Jones commented that if the Council will look back at the Barrett Mill, it was named this from 
around 1858-1896. He explained that as a publically recognizable landmark, the whole vicinity is 
the Reed Creek Mill area. Mr. Jones commented that it only makes sense to him that the road 
be named Reed Creek Mill Road. He remarked that he is only attending the Council meeting to 
voice support for that concept, and he hopes that the Council will consider his comments as a 
person with multiple addresses if his subdivision is taken into consideration. Mr. Jones stated 
that he thinks that Reed Creek Mill Road would be the least confusing, and it would get people 
to where they are going. He remarked that the fact that a person would cross the bridge and 
connect to Barrett Mill Road is not a problem because the residents do it all the time when they 
transition from the town to the county. He noted that it would leave Mr. Barrett and his family 
with something of significance named in the community because they were a significant, historic 
family. Mr. Jones remarked that this was his comment in regard to the proposed road name 
change. He noted that he thinks that the Town should think from a branding standpoint, if and 
when the Town does get around to naming the park, that it be considered if there is a Reed 
Creek Mill Road and Reed Creek Mill Park, and all of those start to become uniform. He noted 
that he thinks all of this comes into play at some point from an attraction standpoint by attracting 
people to the community. Mr. Jones remarked that it would be something people would visit and 



 
 

stay to see. He noted that this was his comment. Mr. Jones expressed that he had one other 
request that was in regard to the park. Mr. Jones stated that he knows the Council has been 
asked already by some of Dr. Thomas Hunter’s family to perhaps have a memorial statue 
located somewhere, and he noted that Dr. Hunter was a really good friend of his. Mayor Crewe 
remarked that if he was incorrect about what he was getting ready to state for Mr. Jones to 
please stop him, but there has been a suggestion made, and he noted that the Council has 
taken no action and really has not reviewed the suggestion, but what he thinks Mr. Jones’ 
suggestion would be is that maybe some of Mr. Jones’ property that he has been good enough 
to donate to the Town might be a proper location for some type of memorial for Dr. Thomas 
Hunter. Mr. Jones expressed that this is exactly what his suggestion was going to be. He 
explained that the park would lend itself for this. He noted that he and his wife donated land in 
memory of his dad, and he commented that he would be straightforward in regard that his dad 
also committed suicide. Mr. Jones stated that he really feels strongly, and he would like 
something in memory of Dr. Thomas Hunter in that park. Vice-Mayor King expressed that she 
thinks it is a good idea. Mr. Jones remarked that he thinks it would fit well with the context. He 
noted that there is another person who donated land to this project and that was Ms. Connie 
Martin, whose son Jody had a similar issue. Mayor Crewe commented that he was trying to 
alleviate Mr. Jones asking for this. Mr. Jones stated he thinks there are a lot of things that relate 
to this. He noted that he is only asking the Council to consider this request and that perhaps the 
park would be a neat place to put it. Mayor Crewe explained that he thinks what Mr. Jones is 
going to hear when the Council gets to the street naming item on the agenda is that Town staff 
has heard from approximately half of the affected residents. He noted that not all of the affected 
residents are in favor of the road name change, but he thinks Town staff is going to try to visit 
residents or do something more to get the word out to the people the Town has not heard from 
at this time, but the Town is moving in that direction. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Jones for 
attending the meeting and sharing his thoughts. He inquired if anybody had any questions or 
comments for Mr. Jones while he is at the meeting. There being no questions or comments, and 
no one else to address the Council during Citizens’ Period, Mayor Crewe proceeded with the 
agenda. 
 
RE: OLD BUSINESS 
 
Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following: 
 
1. The next Council Work Session will be held on Tuesday, September 13, 2016, at 7:00 

a.m.  
 
2. The Council Personnel Committee will meet on Wednesday, September 14, 2016, at 8:15 

a.m., at the Visitors’ Center. Town Manager Sutherland noted, this time, the Committee 
will have seven new employee representatives present, and the current Council 
representatives will work with them on the Committee for the next three months. He 
explained that in December, Councilwoman Taylor and Councilman Hand will rotate onto 
the Committee.   

 
3. The New River Regional Water Authority will meet on Thursday, September 15, 2016, at 

9:30 a.m., in the Council Chambers.  
 
4. Town Manager Sutherland advised that the Town Council meeting scheduled for Monday, 

October 10, 2016, also happens to be the same date of the Virginia Municipal League 
Conference. He inquired of the Council if they wished to dispense or reschedule the 
October 10, 2016, Town Council meeting, due to the Virginia Municipal League 
Conference being held on the same date. Mayor Crewe inquired of the Council as to what 
they would like to do in regard to the October 10 meeting. Vice-Mayor King commented 
that she thought, normally, the Council dispensed with the meeting. Town Manager 
Sutherland stated that is correct. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded 
by Councilman Hundley to dispense with the October 10, 2016, Town Council meeting due 
to the Virginia Municipal League Conference being held on the same date. Mayor Crewe 
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion to dispense with the October 10 
meeting. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, Thomas F. 
Hundley, Beth A. Taylor. Against: None.  

 
RE:  BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Vice-Mayor King, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, stated that the Budget and 
Finance Committee has two requests for the appropriation of funds for two programs that were 
funded in the last fiscal year. She noted that the first request is from the Department of 
Museums seeking an appropriation of $10,000 that will be the final payment on a feasibility 



 
 

study conducted by their architect, David Gall, for the future kitchen building and gunsmith shop, 
both of which are to be located between the Rock House Museum and the Boyd Museum. Vice-
Mayor King explained that the total expenses for the study are $24,000, and all of the expenses, 
with the exception of the $10,000, have been paid out of the Department of Museums’ current 
budget. She commented that, last spring, the Council agreed to appropriate the additional 
$10,000 when the study was completed. Vice-Mayor King stated, secondly, the Budget and 
Finance Committee has a request from the Department of Public Information and Tourism 
regarding the DRIVE Tourism Program. She noted that these grant funds that were awarded 
last year are to be used for a downtown entertainment venue feasibility study. Vice-Mayor King 
explained that this study has not yet been conducted, and it was requested that the $10,000 
appropriated last year be rolled over into the current fiscal year. She remarked that the Budget 
and Finance Committee believes that both of these requests for appropriations are worthwhile. 
Vice-Mayor King advised that it would be the recommendation of the Budget and Finance 
Committee that both requests be approved and the Council authorize both departments to 
disperse the money when needed. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by 
Councilwoman Taylor to approve an appropriation of $10,000 to the Department of Museums 
for the final payment for a feasibility study for a kitchen and a gunsmith shop, approve an 
appropriation of $10,000 to the Department of Public Information and Tourism for the Tourism 
DRIVE Program and authorize both departments to disperse the funds when needed. Mayor 
Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to approve the appropriations and 
disbursements. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor 
and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, Thomas F. 
Hundley, Beth A. Taylor. Against: None. 
 
Vice-Mayor King, also, reported that last year, the Council agreed to fund up to $100,000 to the 
Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority for work they are performing on Freedom 
Lane. She stated, as the Council may recall, Freedom Lane is a 24-unit housing complex 
designed to benefit veterans. Vice-Mayor King explained that the Town served as the applicant 
for a Community Development Block Grant and received grant funding to install the 
infrastructure for the project. She commented that the pledge of $100,000 by the Council is to 
be used in conjunction with the block grant funding to perform the site work. Vice-Mayor King 
stated the Housing Authority has now requested that these funds be released. She advised that 
the $100,000 is appropriated in this year’s budget, and it would be the recommendation of the 
Budget and Finance Committee that the Council authorize the payment of the request. A motion 
was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilwoman Taylor to approve the request 
of the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority for an appropriation of $100,000 for the 
Freedom Lane Project. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to 
approve the request of the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority. There being 
none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, Thomas F. Hundley, Beth A. Taylor. Against: 
None. A copy of the Budget and Finance Committee report is attached and made part of these 
minutes.  
 
RE:  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Hundley, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated that, as the Council is 
aware, the construction of the remaining portion of Community Boulevard is scheduled to be bid 
this November. He explained that this section of roadway will connect the end of the existing 
Community Boulevard with Lithia Road. Councilman Hundley remarked that the design of the 
roadway includes the installation of a new water line throughout the project and certain 
adjustments to existing sewer lines in the area. He explained that the total estimated betterment 
cost is $753,580. Councilman Hundley stated that in previous years, in a State construction 
project, the cost associated with a betterment was paid once the project was completed. He 
explained that regulations have now changed such that the payment by the municipality to the 
State is paid in a series of installments beginning when the Town executes the betterment 
contract and proceeding through December 2017. Councilman Hundley noted that in order for 
this work to be performed, it is necessary that the Town execute a contract with the Virginia 
Department of Transportation to include these betterments into the road project. He advised that 
it would be the recommendation of the Public Works Committee that the Council authorize the 
Town Manager to execute the contracts necessary to get this work performed. A motion was 
made by the Public Works Committee, which does not require a second, to authorize the Town 
Manager to execute the contract documents with VDOT for the betterment costs of $753,580 for 
the Community Boulevard Road Project. Mayor Crewe inquired if there was any discussion on 
the motion to authorize the Town Manager to execute the contract documents. There being 
none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, Thomas F. Hundley, Beth A. Taylor. Against: 
None. 
 



 
 

Councilman Hundley, also, reported that at the first meeting in August, the Public Works 
Committee reported that the Town was considering a suggestion it had received to rename the 
roadway leading to the Historic Truss Bridge Project and Reed Creek Mill Dam to eliminate the 
current confusion with the street name. He explained that, currently, someone traveling to one 
of these sites would proceed south on Sixth Street from Calhoun Street and cross the railroad, 
and as the traveler proceeds down the road, they find themselves on Church Street. 
Councilman Hundley stated that the Council did, in fact, send out a survey to the 28 property 
owners who live along this route. He noted that, to date, 14 people along this roadway have 
responded. Councilman Hundley explained that the Council had previously reported that it 
would be sharing its results at this meeting, and the Council thinks that it will continue to receive 
additional comments. He explained that out of the 14 respondents, 11 have agreed with the 
street name change while three are opposed. Councilman Hundley stated another idea that has 
surfaced is to name the roadway something similar to Reed Creek Mill Road so that it would be 
clear to a traveler that they were proceeding to the new park that is being developed at the truss 
bridge, as well as the Reed Creek Mill. He advised that the Public Works Committee does not, 
as of yet, have a recommendation, but it anticipates that something should be presented at a 
Council meeting in the very near future. Mayor Crewe stated the Council will continue to 
consider this matter, and that is what he was trying to tell Mr. Jones is that the Council has not 
made a decision in regard to the renaming of the street. He noted that it may or may not take 
place at the next Town Council meeting. A copy of the Public Works Committee report is 
attached and made part of these minutes.  
 
RE: MILLER SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 
 
Mayor Crewe advised the next agenda item is the issuance of a special exception permit to 
Garnett and Polly Miller for a special exception permit to operate a carwash at 425 East Main 
Street, which is located on the south side of Main Street between Fifth and Seventh Streets, in a 
B-2 DT- General Business District – Downtown Zoning District. He noted that the Council has 
the recommendation from the Planning Commission in their Council notebooks, and that the 
recommendation is that the special exception permit be approved with three stipulations. Mayor 
Crewe advised that the stipulations include the following: 1.) The property shall be improved by 
refurbishing the building(s) and structures by repairing, replacing and/or repainting, improving 
lighting type and design, providing landscaped areas and paving; 2.) Buffer yards shall be 
installed on the east and west property lines and on Spring Street; and, 3.) Failure to comply 
with these conditions shall be grounds for rescinding this special exception permit. He explained 
to the Council that they may take the action that they desire, and he noted that no one spoke at 
the public hearing, which was held earlier in the meeting. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is a 
motion concerning the application for a special exception permit to Garnett and Polly Miller to 
operate a carwash at 425 East Main Street. A motion was made by Councilwoman Taylor and 
seconded by Vice-Mayor King to issue a special exception permit to Garnett and Polly Miller to 
operate a carwash at 425 East Main Street, which is located on the south side of Main Street 
between Fifth and Seventh Streets, in a B-2 DT- General Business District – Downtown Zoning 
District, with the following stipulations: 1.) The property shall be improved by refurbishing the 
building(s) and structures by repairing, replacing and/or repainting, improving lighting type and 
design, providing landscaped areas and paving; 2.) Buffer yards shall be installed on the east 
and west property lines and on Spring Street; and, 3.) Failure to comply with these conditions 
shall be grounds for rescinding this special exception permit. Mayor Crewe stated that he is 
assuming since this recommendation came from the Planning Commission, and he noted that 
he has seen the minutes, that if there is a problem with those three stipulations, the Millers 
should speak now, but he is assuming the Millers are not objecting to the stipulations listed. He 
noted that if the Millers do not comply with those stipulations, the special exception permit can 
be rescinded. Mayor Crewe inquired of the Millers if there were any problems they saw with the 
stipulations recommended. Mr. Miller commented that they were only notified of two stipulations. 
Mayor Crewe explained that the third stipulation is that failure to comply with the first two 
stipulations would be grounds to rescind the special exception permit. He reiterated that the first 
stipulation is to refurbish, the second stipulation is the buffer yard and the third stipulation is that 
if the stipulations are not complied with, the special exception permit can be rescinded. Mayor 
Crewe stated that it is a condition of the permit that it can be rescinded if there is 
noncompliance. He noted that he is assuming from Mr. Miller’s comment that the stipulations 
are not a problem. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to issue the 
special exception permit to the Millers with the stipulations. There being none, the motion was 
approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. 
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, Thomas F. Hundley, Beth A. Taylor. Against: None. 
 
RE: VIP PETCARE SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT REQUEST 
 
Mayor Crewe advised the next agenda item is the recommendation from the Wytheville 
Planning Commission to consider the request of VIP Petcare for a special exception permit to 



 
 

provide veterinary services at Tractor Supply at 1380 East Main Street, which is located in the 
Lee-Hy Shopping Center (former Big Lots Shopping Center), located on the north side of East 
Main Street between Cassell Road and the Mountain View Square Shopping Center, in a B-2 
Business District. He noted that it will be necessary for the Town Council to set a public hearing 
to consider this request, which could be scheduled for the October 24, 2016, Council meeting 
since the Council is not meeting on October 10. Mayor Crewe expressed that October 24, 2016, 
would meet all of the necessary advertising requirements, if the Council chooses this date. He 
inquired if there is any opposition to scheduling the public hearing for October 24, 2016. There 
being no objection, it was the consensus of the Council to set a public hearing for the October 
24, 2016, Council meeting at 7:00 p.m. to consider the request of VIP Petcare for a special 
exception permit to provide veterinary services at Tractor Supply at 1380 East Main Street, 
which is located in the Lee-Hy Shopping Center (former Big Lots Shopping Center), located on 
the north side of East Main Street between Cassell Road and the Mountain View Square 
Shopping Center, in a B-2 Business District. 
 
RE:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded and 
carried to adjourn the meeting (7:23 p.m.). 
       
             

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor 
 

        
Sharon G. Corvin, Town Clerk 
 
 
G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2016\Council Minutes 091216.doc 



1 
 

 BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2016 

 
 
1. We have two requests for the appropriation of funds for two programs that were 

funded in the last fiscal year. The first request is from the Department of 

Museums seeking an appropriation of $10,000 that will be the final payment on a 

feasibility study conducted by their architect, David Gall, for the future kitchen 

building and gunsmith shop, both of which are to be located between the Rock 

House Museum and the Boyd Museum. The total expenses for the study are 

$24,000, and all of the expenses, with the exception of the $10,000, have been 

paid out of the Department of Museums’ current budget. Last spring, the Council 

agreed to appropriate the additional $10,000 when the study was completed. 

Secondly, we have a request from the Department of Public Information and 

Tourism regarding the DRIVE Tourism Program. These grant funds that were 

awarded last year are to be used for a downtown entertainment venue feasibility 

study. This study has not yet been conducted, and it was requested that the 

$10,000 appropriated last year be rolled over into the current fiscal year. We 

believe that both of these requests for appropriations are worthwhile. It would be 

the recommendation of the Budget and Finance Committee that both requests be 

approved and we authorize both departments to disperse the money when 

needed.  

 

2. Last year, the Council agreed to fund up to $100,000 to the Wytheville 

Redevelopment and Housing Authority for work they are performing on Freedom 



2 
 

Lane. As you may recall, Freedom Lane is a 24-unit housing complex designed 

to benefit veterans. The Town served as the applicant for a Community 

Development Block Grant and received grant funding to install the infrastructure 

for the project. The pledge of $100,000 by the Council is to be used in 

conjunction with the block grant funding to perform the site work. The Housing 

Authority has now requested that these funds be released. The $100,000 is 

appropriated in this year’s budget, and it would be the recommendation of the 

Budget and Finance Committee that we authorize the payment of the request.  

 

 

 
 
              

   Jacqueline K. King 
 
 

                                  
Beth A. Taylor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H:\COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2016\BFSEPT12.doc 



 
 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2016 

 

1. As the Council is aware, the construction of the remaining portion of Community 

Boulevard is scheduled to be bid this November. This section of roadway will 

connect the end of the existing Community Boulevard with Lithia Road. The design 

of the roadway includes the installation of a new water line throughout the project 

and certain adjustments to existing sewer lines in the area. The total estimated 

betterment cost is $753,580. In previous years, in a State construction project, the 

cost associated with a betterment was paid once the project was completed. 

Regulations have now changed such that the payment by the municipality to the 

State is paid in a series of installments beginning when the Town executes the 

betterment contract and proceeding through December 2017. In order for this work 

to be performed, it is necessary that the Town execute a contract with the Virginia 

Department of Transportation to include these betterments into the road project. It 

would be the recommendation of the Public Works Committee that the Council 

authorize the Town Manager to execute the contracts necessary to get this work 

performed.  

 

2. At our first meeting in August, we reported that we were considering a suggestion 

we had received to rename the roadway leading to the Historic Truss Bridge Project 

and Reed Creek Mill Dam to eliminate the current confusion with the street name. 

Currently, someone traveling to one of these sites would proceed south on Sixth 



 
 2 

Street from Calhoun Street and cross the railroad, and as the traveler proceeds 

down the road, they find themselves on Church Street. We did, in fact, send out a 

survey to the 28 property owners who live along this route. To date, 14 people along 

this roadway have responded. We had previously reported that we would be sharing 

our results at this meeting, and we think that we will continue to receive additional 

comments. Out of the 14 respondents, 11 have agreed with the street name change 

while three are opposed. Another idea that has surfaced is to name the roadway 

something similar to Reed Creek Mill Road so that it would be clear to a traveler that 

they were proceeding to the new park that is being developed at the truss bridge, as 

well as the Reed Creek Mill. We do not, as of yet, have a recommendation, but we 

anticipate that something should be presented at a Council meeting in the very near 

future.    

 

 

             
        Thomas F. Hundley 
 
 
 
               

       Joseph E. Hand, Jr. 
        
 
 

 
 
 
 

H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2016\PWSEPT12.doc 


	Minutes of the regular meeting of September 12, 2016
	Budget and Finance Committee Report
	Public Works Committee Report


